
 

1 

 

MINUTES OF REGULARY SCHEDULED PUBLIC MEETING 
This regular meeting of the Alternative Fuels Technicians Examiners Committee 
scheduled to begin at 9:00 a.m. on the 7th day of June, 2016 was convened in accordance 
with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act [25 O.S., 301 et seq.]. Further, an advance public 
notice that was sent to the Secretary of State’s Office of Administrative Rules, prior to this 
time today, specifying the time and place of the meeting here convened, preceded this 
meeting. Notice of this meeting was given at least twenty-four (24) hours prior hereto and 
no one filed a written request of notice of meetings of this public body to date. 
 

PUBLIC BODY: Alternative Fuels Technicians Examiners Committee 

 

DATE:   June 7, 2016 

 

ADDRESS:  Oklahoma Department of Labor (ODOL) 

3017 N Stiles Ste. 100 

Oklahoma City, OK 73105 

 

CONTACT PERSON:  Ruth Neville     Telephone (405) 521-6594 

 

Agenda Item 1:  Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m. by Jeff Twiehaus. 

 

Agenda Item 2: Roll Call 

Committee members present: Mark Bumgarner, Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

Members Absent: Craiton Cooper, Charles Lawson 

Four voting members and one non-voting member were present. 

There is one committee member vacancy.  

A quorum was present. 

 

Oklahoma Department of Labor staff present: James Buck, Angelia Cobble, Robert Lassiter, 

Daniel Mares, John Melson, Don Schooler, Nicholas Smith  

 

Agenda Item 3: Statement of Compliance with Oklahoma’s Open Meeting Act 

The Statement of Compliance with the Open Meeting Act was read by Nicholas Smith. 

 

Agenda Item 4: Appointment of Ty Burnett to Alternative Fuels Technician Examiners Committee 

James Buck introduced Ty Burnett, Committee member appointed by Oklahoma Labor 

Commissioner Melissa Houston to replace the Liquid Petroleum Gas Equipment (LPG) Technician 

position previously held by Roger Luke. Mr. Buck said Mr. Burnett has been assigned a four (4) 

year term to the Committee. Mr. Buck thanked Mr. Burnett for his willingness to serve on the 

Committee. Mr. Buck said Mr. Burnett brings a wealth knowledge to the Committee from the LPG 

industry as well as HAZMAT and the fire department, which will be very beneficial.  

 

Agenda Item 5: Review and Action to Approve/Amend April 5, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to approve the April 5, 2016 regular meeting minutes.  

The motion was seconded by Mark Harris.  



 

2 

 

Role Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved.  

 

Agenda Item 6: Review and Action to Approve/Amend May 3, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to approve the May 6, 2016 special meeting minutes. The motion 

was seconded by Mark Bumgarner.  

Role Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved.  

 

Agenda Item 7: Review/approve licenses issued in April, 2016 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to approve the Alternative Fuels licenses issued in April, 2016. The 

motion was seconded by Mark Harris.  

Role Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved.  

 

James Buck said Mark Harris has requested a temporary license until he is able to take a course 

for Alternative Fuels Compression Technician Level I. Mr. Buck said Mr. Harris has enrolled in 

several Compression Technician training classes, however, due to low enrollment, the classes were 

canceled.  Mr. Buck said in the past, thirty (30) day or sixty (60) day temporary licenses contingent 

upon the individual passing the course have been issued. Mr. Buck said after that sixty (60) days 

the license is no longer valid. Mr. Buck said it is up to the Committee to listen to the cause and 

determine if they would like to make a recommendation to issue a temporary license. Mr. Buck 

turned the floor over to Mr. Harris for further discussion.  

 

Mr. Harris said based upon research of industry standards in the past, up to this point, OnCue has 

been doing extensive, weekly preventative maintenance. Mr. Harris said OnCue is absolutely 

certain they can lean on a monthly preventative maintenance program and move more into a visual 

check of all the equipment on a weekly basis. 

 

Mr. Harris said until some internal staff are licensed as Level I Compression Technicians, he is 

requesting permission to visually check every OnCue compressor system on a weekly basis.  Mr. 

Harris said the extent of his technical duties would be adding oil to a compressor unit from time 

to time. Mr. Harris said OnCue would still be dependent on a service provider for any work and 

repairs beyond that.   

 

Jeff Twiehaus said he didn’t see a problem with that. Mr. Buck said that could be added to 

approvals of licenses. Mr. Buck said the Committee could make a recommendation for issuance 



 

3 

 

of a thirty (30) or sixty (60) day temporary license. Mark Bumgarner asked if Mr. Harris was 

asking for a temporary license for anyone else in the company. Mr. Harris said only for himself. 

The Committee continued discussion over Mr. Harris’ qualifications and experience, how many 

licensed compression technicians are employed by OnCue, the unavailability of Compression 

Technician Level I classes, how often a temporary license may be granted in the future, what the 

Statute states regarding temporary license, documentation required to support a request for a 

temporary license and how these requests should be handled. 

 

Mr. Twiehaus said in the past, an individual requesting a temporary license was asked to submit a 

letter from his employer on company letterhead stating years of employment, experience, 

background and their intent on why the temporary license is being requested. Mr. Twiehaus said 

the pre-requisites for obtaining a license would also need to be met. Daniel Mares, Oklahoma 

Department of Labor (ODOL) Legal Counsel said he will look into it but does know there is not a 

provision in the rules for this type of situation. Mr. Twiehaus said Mr. Harris should submit a letter 

to the ODOL stating the information that the Committee requested and the Committee will review 

it at the next meeting. Mr. Twiehaus said the Committee needs to seek direction form legal counsel 

on what to do. Mr. Buck said Mr. Harris should submit the letter of request to the Committee and 

the ODOL will look into what to do. No action was taken.  

 

Agenda Item 8: Review/approve licenses issued in May 2016 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to approve the Alternative Fuels licenses issued in May, 2016. The 

motion was seconded by Mark Bumgarner.  

Role Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved.  

 

Agenda Item 9: Alternative Fuels Training Programs 

Craiton Cooper was scheduled to lead the discussion. As Mr. Cooper was not available for today’s 

meeting, the discussion was postponed until the July 12, 2016 meeting.  

 

Agenda Item 10: Fill Station and Compression Technician Licenses 

Jeff Twiehaus said previously the Committee had discussed permitting out of state technicians to 

come to Oklahoma to work on equipment if they are supervised by an Oklahoma licensed 

technician. Mr. Twiehaus said we are going to make a decision on whether to allow that or if the 

Committee sees a need for that. James Buck said the Oklahoma Department of Labor (ODOL) is 

still addressing that and has been in contact with the Texas Railroad Commission about the way 

they handle it. Mr. Buck said there is not much information available on how to handle this in 

regards to alternative fuels. Mr. Buck said we have a framework but still need to identify the 

reporting requirements and the number of times an unlicensed technician could work in Oklahoma 

in one year.  

 

The Committee reviewed the Tracking Report forms. Mr. Twiehaus said the intention of the form 

is in the event there is some type of new technology or new equipment that requires an outside 

engineer or technician to come into Oklahoma to assist Oklahoma licensed employees to maintain 



 

4 

 

or repair the equipment, we are prepared to do that. The Committee continued discussion over 

whether additional information should be requested on the tracking report, who assumes liability 

when an out of state technician is working with an Oklahoma licensed technician (the Oklahoma 

licensed technician assumes liability), and limiting an out of state technician specifically to the 

work directly related to the area of concern.  

 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to approve the Unlicensed Technician Tracking Report with the 

following change: “Describe work that was performed” will be changed to read “Describe work 

that was directly related to the area of concern.” The motion was seconded by Mark Harris. 

Roll Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved. 

 

The Committee continued discussion over how many times an out of state technician should be 

permitted to enter Oklahoma without a license. The Committee determined that they would like to 

see any tracking reports that are submitted to ODOL each month and they would determine at that 

time how many times are excessive.  

 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to add: “Committee will review occurrences for validity” to the 

Tracking Report form. The motion was seconded by Mark Harris. 

Roll Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved. 

 

Agenda Item 11: Video of process for venting Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) 

Angelia Cobble showed a video of the process for venting CNG by Oklahoma Department of 

Labor Compliance Officer Robert Lassiter. Mr. Lassiter said there is a storage issue with the valves 

on his truck and he has discovered that there is not as much less gas being vented as was believed. 

Mr. Lassiter said he thought he was venting thirty (30) Gasoline Gallon Equivalent (GGE) is 

probably more like seven (7) GGEs that are being vented. Mr. Lassiter said it takes about three 

minutes to vent a container. Mr. Lassiter said the noise is much quieter than a compressor running 

and not much louder than the filling process.   

 

Agenda Item 12: Legislative Update 

No legislative update at this time. 

  

Agenda Item 13: Public Comments  

Scott Minton, OnCue, said there will be an event to celebrate Governor Fallin’s goal of having a 

Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) station every one hundred (100) miles having been met. Mr. 

Minton said construction of a station in Billings, Oklahoma completed that goal. Mr. Minton said 

donuts and coffee will be available at the station in Billings on June twenty-first (21st) to 

celebrate. Mr. Minton invited everyone to attend and said there are invitations on the table in the 



 

5 

 

back of the room.  

 

Eric Pollard, Clean Cities, said on May eleventh (11th), the Twin Cities Coalition partnered with 

the Propane Gas Association to host the Coast to Coast Propane Rally across the country. Mr. 

Pollard said last Thursday Clean Cities hosted the Sea to Shining Sea CNG Rally that was hosted 

by Oklahoma Natural Gas. Mr. Pollard said the next Clean Cities Coalition’s state board meeting 

will be June twenty-eighth (28th) or June twenty-ninth (29th).   

 

John Claybon, Oklahoma City Community College (OCCC), said OCCC is having a Level II 

CNG exam scheduled June thirteenth (13th) and June fourteenth (14th). Mr. Claybon said 

additional dates will be scheduled shortly. 

 

Agenda Item 14: Next regular meeting scheduled for 9:00 a.m. July 12, 2016. Special meeting 

to review/revise Alternative Fuels Equipment Technician exam scheduled immediately after this 

regular meeting at 10:00 a.m. 

 

Agenda Item 15: Adjournment 

Jeff Twiehaus made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Mark Harris. 

Roll Call: 

Aye: Jeff Twiehaus, Mark Bumgarner, Mark Harris, Ty Burnett 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

The motion was approved. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:21 a.m. 

 

 
 


